HOW THE VILLAGE GOT ITS NAUE

About one hundred and twenty years ago there came to Canada
from England one Henry Payne, a carpenter and joiner, with
his wife, also & Miss Payne before her marriage, and their
family of two sons, Henry, the eldest, Frederick, and one
daughter Sarah. One daughter died in Englsnd prior to their
voyage to Canada. Although lMr. and Mrs. Payne were of the
same name they were of no relation before their marriage.
They came to Canada by sailboat and one boy, Frederick, was
almost washed overboard when a wave broke over the boat. He
was saved by a lady who cought his leg just as he wzs about
to go over.

On their arrival in Canada they overlanded as best they
could,; walking most of the way, travelling westward until
they arrived at a little set§1ement on Kettle Creek, now the
City of St. Thomas. Needless to say this wes a long and
tedious Jjourney, travelling dver rough roads and Indian
trails. They continued westwerd and bought from one Squire
VMatthews, a tract of land known as Lot 35 S.H.B.T.R.

Squire Matthews was a Welshman who cems to Canada when he

. wes jilted by the girl he was to have married. She married
_another who soon died, ‘she came to Canade and in the course

of time the Squire heard of it and married her,

Lot 35, situated south of the north branch of the Talbot
Road (No. 3 'Highwey) was the Payne homestead and has been
handed -down from generation to generation and is still in
the Payne family.

In the course of years the old gentleman, Henry Payne,
passed awsy and his son Frederick who was seven years of age
when they came to Canada, took over the farm, keeping his
Mother with him until her death in her 99th year. Before
his death Mr. Payne built on Kettle Creek the first grist
mill in the township. This too wes operated by Frederick
Payne.

Frederick Payne married Serah Sharon of Frome, Ontario, who
lived in the brick dwelling east of the Congregational
Church (now United Church). Her parents were of U.E.L.
stock coming to Canada from Pennsylvania. They walked

from Niagara Falls to St. Thomas.

Miss Sheron wes a school teacher at Paynes' Mills having
charge of a summer school at the szge of 14 though she wes
not yet a qualified teacher. This school was a log
building which stood on the opposite side of the road from
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< the present school. She received $6.00 per month as
*wages but of course she boarded at home, riding to and

¥ rom school on horseback. Later she obtained Lier certif-
dicate at the age of eightcen, the exemination being
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The following is a newspaper utory found in 2 binder lavelled
"Paynes rersonal hothy qmlly that was kept by Gordoun rFayne.
Neither the name of the paper nor the date of the issue in
which the story appeared are included with the clipping The
Daper was probably The 3t. Thozas Tinmese.

HONOR MR3S. PAYNE OF PAYNE'S MILLS

Dauﬁhter—in—Law of Founder of Pavne's IMills Attains Her 94th Birthday
rayne s Mills, Oct.,17. —- (Special) -- The friends, neighbors

and relatives of Payne s Mills' oldest lady, iirs. S.E. Payne, net

to celebrate her ninety-fourth birthday in the community nall here

on Friday evening, VYctober 16. 4 large number gathered, a delicious

supper was servpd speeches we ‘e made and a beautiful bouguet pre-

sented to Mrs. arne, who, in spite of her years, made = most gracious

reply. A feature of the banquet was a largs birthday cake set with

ninety-four candles.

Amon@ those present were lr. and lirs. sturgeon Payne and “arlon,
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Baker of South Delaware, lir. and *‘rs. Stanley
Sharon, Mr. and lirs. belly of Lambeth, and &4lex. Lyle, a neighbour
who is near the ninety-mark. Following is ths address presented to
lirs., Fayne:

"ie, vour friends ‘and neighbours, have gathered here to honor you
on your ninety-fourth birthday. Having lived long and well we con-
sratulate vou. We love as one who has come a long way, as one of
our dear old peop’e who has seen much thst is sunny and nuch that
is sad in life and yet has kept faith sweet and stronge.

"We honor you for your exemplary Christian life. sSurely ther:z is
no greater thing than to have lived well. We are rem nded of your
zealous service in the cause of Tenp=rance; the benefits of which
the young of our community are reaping today. Your allegiance also
in the church and Sunday school and the ever-willing efforts put
forth there have borne fruit thst must be ajoy to you. in youp
declining years. We have learned from vou too, t 2t patience and
persistence in comn-n things through the days and years is a mark
of true living. We know there are many people who can work under
pressure for a little time but who tire of the monotony and
become slack in their efforts by and by, failing at last because
they cannot endure unto the end. e see people too, who begin many
noble things but weary of them and drop them out of their hands.
They may pass for brilliant men, even men of genius, but in the
end they hav: for biozraphy only a volume of frasments of chapters,
not one of them finished. Such men may attract a gre -t decl of
attention while the tireless plodder vworking beside them receives
no praise, no commendation; but in th records of life writien
in God's great book 1t is the latter who will shine in brightest
splendour.

Ngble deeds are held in honor,

ut the wide world sadly needs
" Hearts of patience to unravel
The worth of common deeds.
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/e are most hazpy to be here oun this occasion and e trust you
may be spared to ‘ee many .ore birthdays. ss & zmall expressicn of
our respect and love for you we ask you to zccept these flowers and

nay their beauty and fragrance remind you of the lov:ly in life and
of the vromise of glorious things in the life to come. “or God has
said, '%ith long 1life will 1 honor you,' znd ‘ienceforth there is
laid up for me a crown of righteousness.' "

Mrse Qavne s maiden name wss Sarah Ellen Sharon, the daughter
of Thomas Sharon and Jane Sutton. She was born a mile west of this
village in 1831 on the farm until a few years ago occupied by her
brother, F. H. A. Sharon. oShe wzs descended from U.E. Loralist
stock, her forefathers having migrated from Scotland and settled
in Penn ylvania, from whence they moved to Canada, Thomas and Henry
Sharon walking fr:om Niagarz Falls to St. Thomas. Having fitted
herself for a shcool teacher she secured her certificate from Judge
Elliot of London and taught school in this village in a building
on the opposite side of the road from the one now in use, making
the trip each day on horseback. She also tausht in a2 school not
standing now for many ye=rs, a log building one mile north of the
village where lirs. George Thompson, Absalom Gilbert s sister, was
one of her pupils. #iddifield's Corners, between 3t7 Thomas and
Union on the Grsvel road, was another schcol where she trained
vouth in readin' and 'ritin' and 'rithmetic, not omittins morals
and mannerse.

In 1851 she was married to Frederick rarne who wss born in
Wiltshire, England, son of Henry rayne. iz ﬂ°*e to this land
with his parents when 3 7ears of age. The fanily moved into the
house purchased from one Sguire ‘‘atthews and :5till standing on
the old homestead at Farme s Mills, occupied by Sturgeon Pa ne
and family and vtirs., Payne, Sr. tirs. Parne having gone there as a
bride has lived in the same house for 75 ysars. ir. rFayne, her
husband, died in 1915. Your sons and three daughters wer born
of the union, John in British “olumbia, Georgs, higgara Talls;

Sturgeon at home, Alfred, deceased; lMrs. W. St. Thomas Smith, St.
Thomas; Mrs. I 3aker, Delaware, and Clara, who died in youth.

There are twenty-one grandchildren, two of whom made the
supreme sacrifice in the Greot Jar. Mrs. (Rev. ) J.M. MreGillivray
of Toronto is a granddaughter. There are also fourteen great-
grandchildren. ilephews and nieces. are Stanley Sharon of Payne's
Mills, Floyd and sainley, Sharon, of Callfornlu, and *Yrs. Kelley
of Lambeth. lirs. Sharon s brother, F.H2.,A. 3haron, died in Camrose,
Alta., in 1924, in his 9224 ye=zr.

In the church "Yrs. Payne has ever been foremost in every good
work and has long been known as an earnest Christian and a member
of Talbotvi®le Methodist church. She has also acted as superintendant
of Payne s Mills Sunday 3chool teaching and taking a very active
part.
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The following is a newspaver story found in 2 binder labelled
"Parnes Fersonal lMostly Family" that was kept by Yordon rayne.
Neither the name of the vaper nor the date of the issue in
which the obituary ap> ared is included with the clipping. The
paper was rrobably The 3t. Thomas Tines.

FRED=ZRICK J. PAYNE I3 DEAD: OLD RESIDENT OF PAYFE'S MILLS
Esteemed Southwold Man Succumbs to Brief Illn-ss -~ Father of
Mrs. @W. St. Thomas 3Smith, Was Born in Zngland, an Anglican and
a Conservative -- fad Celebrated Diamond ledding.

The death took place Thursday evening at the age of 87 years of
Frederick J. Payne on the Pine Grove Farm at Payne s lills, after
a short illness. 2

The deceased was born in England Jan. 2%, 1827, and came to
Canada wjith his parents at the ageof four years. fhe family settled
at Payne s Mills, and deceased resided there ever since. Ir. and
Mrs. Payne celebrated their golden wedding 15 years ago and their
diamond wedding five ycars agoe.
_ Deceased was a Conservative and a member of the Anglican church.
He lenves to mourn his loes his wife, three sons, C.J. Clinton,
B.C.; George, M.C.R. engineer, hiagara Falls, and Sturgeon Payne,
at home, and two daughters, brs. «@. 3+, Thomas 35mith, 3t. Thomas,
and Mrg. T../. Baker, South Delaware. Deceased is the last of his
f-ther s family.

The funeral will take nlace Zaturday at 2 o'clock from his 1
residence. interment will be made in ~albotville cemetery.
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the home of Mr. and Mrs. Albert Auckland in 19¢
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The home of Mr. and Mrs. Frank Auckland in 1957






In 1920 Frank S. Auckland purchased a farm in the
raynes Mills area. 1t consisted of 148 acres, being part
of lots 37 and 38 N N BT R, and having belonged to the
estate of the late Edgar Gilbert. Later the same vear
the back 50 acres was sold to James tGunning of Talbotwille
for lumbering purposes. 7tnis left 98 acres. When this
property was owned by the Gilbert family it is said that
2 acres was taken off lots 37 and 38 for a given concession
road petween the two lots. rhus 98 acres remained instead
of the usual 100 acres.

In 194C the eastern part of lot 38 eonsisting of 50
acres was purchased by Frank Auckland from the Fenner Merrill
estate: The back 50 acres of the Merrill farm had been
earlier purchased by John Longhurstf“‘%he farm presently
consists of these 2 parcels of fairly level land. The
first buildings of what is considered the home place on
lot 38 were about 40 rods notth of the present site on a
portion of a&end slightly higher than the presentsite.
However, in 1890 the Gilberts decided to move the buildings
closer to the road and a brick house was built which is
still in use. Trhe house on the former location was moved
to lot 39 and is now the home of aAlex Karafil and family.
the main barn (40 x 50) was moved to the new site and
was put on an 8' cement wall. 1t is said that the cement
for this wall which is 15" thick was mixed by hand on a
platform. <The second barn (36 x 50) was built adjacent to
the main barn but at right angles forming an L shape. It
was raised on a cement wall by the present owner in 1927
with Johm Rémey and Will Auckland, contractors of Talbotville,
doing the work. rurther buildings were added over the
yeacrs and 1n 1938 rravers and Young of Talbotville erected
a cement silo.

Ihe brick house built in 1890 remains much as it was
built although the back portion was replaced in 1926 and
in 1948 sunporches were added.

Across the lane from this home stands a frame home
belonging to Albert Auckland and family. In 1952 the S.E.
part of lot 37, approximately 32 acres, was bought by



Albert and Edith Auckland and the same year a 1% story
frame house was built by carpenters Elmer Auckland of
Talbotville and John Silcox of Frome. This is said to be
near the site of the original Gilbert home on lot 87.

Buildings on the Merrill farm at the time of purchase
consisted of a two family frame dwelling and a large barn.
the barn still stands close to #3 highway. 1t was built
in 1903 and painted red at that time, replacing a barn
destroyed by lightning earlier in the year. »rhe house,
which was built in approximately 1888, as a two family
nome, was occuppied by Mrs. Fenner Merrill until 19473.

This house was put on a lot of its own and sold away from
the farm in 195Q. Mr. Wm. Meek purchased the house and lot.
Now completely remodelled and moved back from # 8 highway,
it belongs to Mr. and srs. Charles Nichols, Mrs. Nichols
being the former Patricia Meek.

Frank Auckland and Winnifred Boughner were married at
Talbotville in 1917 and after living in the Talbotville
area purchased the present farm and have resided there since
1920, being engaged in dairying and general farming. In
January 1921 a son Albert was born and in September 192{3
a second son Lloyd was born. Both boys attended S.S.# 7
Southwold public school (Paynes Mills) and later both
attended the St. Thomas Collegiate Institute. Frank
Auckland was trustee and secretary of 5.S.# 7 for over 30
years.

Albert took up farming upon leaving high school and
is still engaged in farming. 1n 1946 he married Edith
Williams and they have a family of 5 daughters--Karen,
Margaret, Diane, Brenda and Janice. Albert had been active
in Municipal politics. He served on Southwold council for
10 years, being their reeve in 1966 and 1967. As well, he
was wmlgin County's warden in 1967, Canada's Centennial year.

Lloyd Auckland furthered his education by &ttending
Western University and returned to his former high school
in 1947 as a mathematics teacher. He continued there until
his appointment as vice principal of the Central Elgin
Collegiate Institute in 1966. He married Phyllis Latimer of
Paynes Mills in 1948 and they have a family of 3 boys and
2 girls.



